ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 22, 2001
3:30 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lisa Miurkowski, Chair
Representative Andrew Hal cro, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Representati ve Pete Kott

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Joe Hayes

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 80
"An Act relating to the hours during which sale of alcohol and
entry on licensed premises is allowed; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 80(L&C) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO 132

"An Act relating to the possession or distribution of alcohol in
a local option area; requiring liquor license applicants to
submt fingerprints for the purpose of conducting a crimnal
hi story background check, and relating to the use of crimnal
justice information by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board;
providing for a review of alcohol server education courses by
the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board every tw years; and
providing for an effective date."”

- MOVED CSHB 132(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 80

SHORT TI TLE: LEGAL HOURS FOR SALE OF ALCOHOL
SPONSOR( S):  REPRESENTATI VE( S) OGAN

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- March 22, 2001



01/ 19/ 01 0129 (H READ THE FIRST TIME -
REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 01 0129 (H) L&C, FIN
03/ 14/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
03/ 14/ 01 (H) Heard & Hel d
M NUTE( L&C)
03/ 22/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 132
SHORT TI TLE: LI QUOR LI CENSE APPLI CANT CHECK/ TRAI NI NG
SPONSCR('S) : JUDI Cl ARY BY REQUEST

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

02/ 19/ 01 0365 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 19/ 01 0365 (H L&C, JUD, FIN

03/ 16/ 01 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 16/ 01 (H Heard & Held

03/ 16/ 01 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 22/ 01 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE SCOTT OGAN

Al aska State Legislature

Capi tol Building, Room 108

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 80.

HOMRD SCAMAN, Secretary

Counci | on Al cohol Abuse and Public Safety-Al aska, Inc. (CAAPS)
P. O Box 23007

Juneau, Al aska 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 80.

PAM WATTS, Executive Director

Advi sory Board on Al coholismand Drug Abuse
P.O Box 110608

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 80.

MATT FELI X, Director

Nat i onal Council on Al coholism

211 4th Street

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 80.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- March 22, 2001



Cl NDY CASHEN, Representative

Mot hers Agai nst Drunk Driving (MADD)

211 4th Street 102

Juneau, Al aska 99801

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information from MADD to the
committee.

ALl VA " STEVE" DUNNAGAN, Li eutenant

Di vision of Alaska State Troopers

Department of Public Safety

5700 East Tudor Road

Anchor age, Al aska 99507

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified that HB 80 is a piece of the
puzzle that should be passed along with other alcohol-related
| egi sl ati on.

GLENN BRADY, President

Silver Gulch Brewery

No address provided

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 80.

DEAN J. GUANELI, Chief Assistant Attorney General
Legal Services Section-Juneau

Crimnal Division

Departnent of Law

P. O Box 110300

Juneau, Al aska 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 113.

DOUG GRI FFIN, Director

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Depart ment of Revenue

550 W7th Avenue, Suite 540

Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 3510

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 132.

BLAI R McCUNE, Deputy Director

Publ i ¢ Def ender Agency

Departnent of Adm nistration

900 West 5th Avenue, Street 200

Anchor age, Al aska 99501- 2090

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 132.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-37, SIDE A

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- March 22, 2001



Number 0001

CHAIR LISA MJRKOMSKI called the House Labor and Conmerce
St andi ng Comm ttee neeting to or der at 3: 20 p. m
Represent ati ves Mirkowski, Kott, Rokeberg, Crawford, and Hayes
were present at the call to order. Representatives Halcro and
Meyer arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 80- LEGAL HOURS FOR SALE OF ALCCOHOL

Number 0048

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that the conmttee would hear HOUSE
BILL NO 80, "An Act relating to the hours during which sale of
al cohol and entry on licensed premses is allowed; and providing
for an effective date." [Before the coommittee, adopted as a work
draft on 3/14/01, was a proposed conmttee substitute (CS), 22-
LS0290\ C, Ford, 3/8/01.]

CHAIR MJURKOWSKI explained that the commttee had received a
stack of information regarding HB 80, along with correspondence
from Mchael T. Lohman, President, M Lohman Investnent Inc.,
W th over 2200 signatures opposing the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE SCOIT OGAN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of
HB 80, recognized receipt of the additional signatures. He
added that the handout entitled "1998 Al aska Traffic Accidents”
from the Alaska Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities, October 1999, shows the accidents: starting about
10 p.m, there were 157 accidents; between 12 and 2 a.m, 181;
and between 2 and 4 a.m, 143. He said it is anecdotal evidence
but it points out that there is a problem |ater at night. | f
anyone can tell him what good conmes from drinking between 2 a.m
and 5 a.m, other than tavern and bar owners nmaking noney, he
said he is "all ears.”

Nunmber 0385

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN said he has ridden with the troopers in his
district nunmerous tinmes and has seen the driving while
i ntoxi cated (DWs) happen after 2 a.m He said this bill is a
proactive rather than a reactive approach

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN renarked that the Matanuska-Susitna area
("valley") has been infanmbus for being the marijuana-grow ng
capital of the state, and now the valley has the "we stay open
until 5 a.m" attitude. In the state with the highest per-

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- March 22, 2001



capita consunption of alcohol, he said, it sends the nessage
that having the bars open late is condoned by the state.

Nunber 0601

HOMARD SCAMAN, Secretary, Council on Al cohol Abuse and Public
Saf et y- Al aska, I nc. ( CAAPS) , via teleconference, said he
represents the "old 2-10 coalition,” the Anchorage bar hours

back in 1981. He said this bill should have passed 18 years
ago, but the ball was dropped. He said it is tragic that this
has gone on for so long, and Representative Ogan is right in
saying that there is no reason to have drinking after 2 a.m He
explained that this bill would di scourage excessive drinking.

MR. SCAMAN added that the Council on Al cohol Abuse and Public
Safety is officially on record in support of HB 80.

Number 0700

PAM WATTS, Executive Director, Advisory Board on Al coholism and
Drug Abuse, asked the commttee to pass HB 80. She said the
board believes that current state |law that disallows bar owners
to sell alcohol between 5 a.m and 8 a.m daily contributes to
the Ilikelihood of drunk driving between conmunities wth
differing hours of operation. A nunber of comunities, she
expl ai ned, have reduced hours of liquor sales and set 2 a.m as
a closing tine. Some residents of these conmunities who |ive
near areas Wth less restrictive hours drive to nearby
comunities to continue drinking until closure, and then drive
hone, thus posing serious potential danger to other drivers.

M5. WATTS pointed out a recent incident in which two intoxicated
drivers, one comng fromthe Anchorage area and one from Mat- Su,
actual ly crashed into one anot her.

Number 0817

M5. WATTS stated that the advisory board believes by reducing
access to alcohol during the early norning hours, the incidence
of DWs can be reduced; this would nake the roadways safer for
all who nmust drive during these hours. She said [the advisory
board] believes that the high rate of alcohol-related injuries
and fatalities in Alaska warrants every effort to reduce the
nunber of al cohol-inpaired drivers on the roads. She would I|ike
to see this type of legislation passed into |aw because it is
one way to begin changing comrunity nornmns. Al aska has the
reputation of being "freewheeling" and open, a hard-drinking

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- March 22, 2001



state. Until "we" stop focusing only on cleaning up the
"wreckage” from these incidents and start focusing on nmaking
sonme changes in conmmunity norns, it will be difficult to nmake
positive headway.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked Ms. Watts what other communities she
is aware of where a person can drive from one comunity to
another with differing bar hours, other than Anchorage, Pal ner
and Kenai .

Nunmber 0896

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN responded that the City of Seward closes its
bars at 2 a.m and there is a bar on the other side of the city
limt that stays open until 5 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked if there were any other exanples
across the state that could be cited, because according to the
information provided by Representative (Ogan's office, nany of
the communities have instituted reduced bar hours on their own.
He asked whether HB 80 is an attenpt to pass legislation to deal
with a local issue in Anchorage or to nake a statewi de public
policy. He comented that it sounds |like a |ocal issue.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN remarked that it would be a statew de issue
because it is a statewde |aw, however, the legislature has to
make a policy call. Most of the nmmjor nunicipalities have done
it already, he explained, and due to the cities' being so far
apart from each other, it is not a problem The legislature is
the | ocal government for the unincorporated areas in the state,
and [the legislature] is saying that it is "our" policy call to
make.

Nunber 1040

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked Ms. Watts what tine of evening that
acci dent occurred.

M5. WATTS responded that it was 3 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked if the people involved in the
collision were both from Anchor age.

Number 1137

MATT FELI X, Director, National GCouncil on Al coholism answered
that the people com ng from Anchorage had all been drinking in a

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- March 22, 2001



bar and were heading to the wvalley to drink nore; this
information was reported to the state trooper. He clarified
that the other driver had been in a bar in the Wasilla area and
was al so intoxicated. And when asked if the ABC Board had cited
the bar owners for serving nore than the required limt by [|aw,
he responded that he did not know.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN clarified that both drivers were charged
wth assault on each other. He cited another case from | ast
wnter in which a woman left a Wasilla bar, drove onto a | ake,
and went through the ice at 5 or 6 a.m There have been a | ot
of cases, he remarked.

Nunber 1314

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said the last tine this bill was heard the
focus was on local control. The City of Wasilla had sent a
resolution saying it opposes HB 80; he asked Representative

Qgan if he knew why. And he comrented that sonetinmes the good
of the whole state needs to be taken into account.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN sai d hi s friends in Wasil |l a are
conservatives and believe in local control; however, if the
policy isn't consistent statew de, there are probl ens.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO asked if Representative Ogan had seen the
fax from Joan Di anond, Injury Prevention Specialist, Dvision of
Public Health, Department of Health and Social Services, dated
March 21, 2001. He referred to a chart show ng the nunber of
fatal al cohol-related crashes between 12 and 6 a.m; he pointed
out that 45.4 percent happen during this tinme period.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN replied that one should also factor in that
bars in Anchorage cl ose much earlier now.

Number 1371

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said [the Anchorage Assenbly] considered
changing the bar hours from 3 a.m on weekends to an earlier
time; however, even going from5 to 3 a.m, [Anchorage] had a
rash of after-hours clubs opening up, and there is no control of
them He said [after-hours clubs] are hard to bust because they
have secret codes [to get in] and so forth. He asked
Representative Ogan if there is concern that nore after-hours
cl ubs coul d open.

Number 1431

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- March 22, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE OGAN replied that it is a possibility, although
he didn't know how nmuch concern there was.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER conmented that during his days on the
Anchorage Assenbly a balance was reached by having the bars
close at 2 a.m during the wek and 3 a.m on the weekends.
[ The situation] was bad when Anchorage's bars were open until 5
a.m, he said.

REPRESENTATIVE OGAN said this would mtigate it sonewhat;
however, there are always people who, if they want to get drunk,
will have the booze that was purchased at a package store
earlier. Nonet hel ess, this would probably cut dowmn on a |ot of
it and send a nessage that Alaska isn't the "party state”
anynore. The young people are probably the nobst susceptible to
that attitude and nentality, he remarked.

Nunmber 1569

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER pointed out that the other thing discussed
[ by the Anchorage Assenbly] was how early the 8 a.m bar opening
time was. In Anchorage, he said, it is 10 a.m, and he asked if
that woul d be an acceptabl e anmendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN stated that he wasn't aware that it was
different and deferred the decision to the commttee. He added
that he didn't think there was nuch business in bars at 8 a. m

Nunmber 1636

CI NDY CASHEN, Representative, Mthers Against Drunk Driving
(MADD), stated that she is a victimof drunk driving. On April
19 [2000] a drunk driver in the Anchorage area Kkilled her
f at her. She had sone information from Charley Fannon, Chief of
Pol i ce, Wasilla.

M5. CASHEN explained that the information from the City of
Wasilla shows people traveling between Anchorage and Wasill a;
those are the nunbers within the nunicipality of Wsilla, she
poi nted out, referring to the commttee' s handout.

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO pointed out that the handout shows the
second- hi ghest arrest total cones from Anchorage, and he asked
if those are arrests nmade by the Wasilla Police Departnent.

M5. CASHEN answered affirmatively.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- March 22, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO followed wup by asking if these DW
incidents are as a result of people traveling back and forth.

M5. CASHEN again answered affirmatively.
Number 1733

MR,  FELI X comented on the odds of two intoxicated people
running into one another. The odds would be [astronom cally
high], he said, and it takes 201 times of driving drunk for a
person to get his or her first DW. He pointed out that in the
Anchorage Daily News today there was an article about a worman
sentenced for fatally injuring another worman early in the
norning in Anchorage, and both were intoxicated. The woman
received a mniml sentence for creating a fatality because both
occupants had been intoxicated.

MR, FELI X said this bill will set a standard in the state, one
that has been needed since statehood: that [Alaska] wll not
put up with the "carnage" and the outrageous cost ensued by
al cohol abuse and al coholismin the state, and paying $41,000 to
keep a person in prison, 60 percent of whom are there for
al cohol -rel ated fel onies. He encouraged the conmittee to nove
the bill forward. Regarding the issue of local control, he said
the state is the governing authority in unincorporated areas to
set a standard.

Nunber 1856

MR. FELI X commented that if nothing else, the standard for the
state would have been set; [the law] wIll hold the existing
municipalities to that standard, and keep them from reversing
it. He said a local issue has local politics, and if [the
| egi sl ature] sets a standard, local nunicipalities will see how

the state feels about issue.

ALVI A "STEVE" DUNNAGAN, Lieutenant, Division of Alaska State
Troopers, Departnment of Public Safety, via tel econference, said
he would like to give the commttee sone firsthand know edge.
He was stationed in Palnmer and arrested nmany drunk drivers from
Anchorage who were using the bars in Palner and Wasilla after
those in Anchorage closed. He said [troopers] used to wait for
themto cone across the flats after 2 a.m, and when there was a
visible traffic increase. This bill, he said, would nake bar
cl osure hours consistent across the state and would go a |ong

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- March 22, 2001



way to help reduce the nunber of traffic accidents and DWs on
t he hi ghways.

Nunber 1924

LI EUTENANT DUNNAGAN said four or five years ago, Fairbanks
drafted an ordi nance and began closing the bars earlier than the
state law; and there was a decrease in the nunber of drunk
drivers being arrested. On the other hand, people would |eave
the Fairbanks city |limt and travel to bars outside the borough
that were still open until 5 a.m, so there were still sone
serious accidents that occurred at 4, 5, and 6 a.m

LI EUTENANT DUNNAGAN reiterated that this would go a long way to

reduci ng those accidents. It is not a "magic pill" or an end to
all of the problens, he explained, but it is a piece of the
puzzle that should be assessed along with all of the other

al cohol -rel ated | egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES said now that the Fairbanks North Star
Borough has instituted a borough-wi de bar closure tine, a person
couldn't drive to another part to get alcohol. He said all the
testinony heard was about Anchorage, Mat-Su, and Seward, and
that he is having a probleminstituting a statew de | aw when the
issue is with one area of the state.

Number 2028

LI EUTENANT DUNNAGAN suggested that if a person wanted to |eave
Fai rbanks or the surrounding area and drive to Nenana only 50

mles away, a person could go there and hang out until 5 a.m
He said if a bar closed at 2 a.m, a person could be in Nenana
by 3 a.m There are still those places where it could happen,

he said; for instance, people in Salcha could drive to Delta.
Number 2046

GLENN BRADY, President, Silver @ilch Brewery, stated that
al t hough he doesn't own a dispensary license he feels conpelled
to address sone issues that have not been brought up. This is a
| ocal option, he said, and needs to be nmade at that |evel to be
receptive to the residents of those areas. And regarding the
statenents about the fact that Alaska is the "party till 5 in
the norning, mayhem sort of place,” M. Brady said he was born
and raised during those tines. To say that tinmes are the sane
now is a vast msrepresentation of the real situation. Al aska
now has sonme of the nobst stringent alcohol legislation in the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- March 22, 2001



country. And regarding the enforcenent of existing |laws, he
said it is already illegal for a |icensed establishnment to serve
an intoxicated person.

MR. BRADY said either "we" are not enforcing existing |aws or
the problemis not the |icensed establishnent. He added: Wth
the possibility of the gas line and shift work and so forth,
what does one do? He said it seens that [the bill] is trying to
punish legitimte consuners of alcohol as a result of an
irresponsible few

Nunmber 2186

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO pointed out that M. Brady had said that
possibly the focus should be on enforcing existing |aws. He
said with any type of law on the books, nore could be achieved
by practicing prevention. This bill, by limting bar hours,
woul d do that. There was testinony |ast week from a man who
said that his bar normally has 200 people still there at 2 a.m,

and by 4:30 a.m it is dowmn to 20 or 50 people. He said those
200 people are there at 2 a.m Dbecause they know they have
anot her three hours to drink. |If the bar closed at 2 a.m, [the
bar owner] wouldn't have 200 people there at that tine.

Number 2230

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO stated that Representative Ogan and others
are taking a proactive approach trying to prevent tragedies, and
this is the first time he's seen actual data from both the
Wasilla Police Departnent and the state Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities that make a correlation
between drinking late in the wevening and alcohol-related
i nci dents. Normally, "we" had all figured that it was just
anecdotal information and testinony. He asked M. Brady if he
agreed that the |egislature should be proactive, in the hope of
preventing sonme of these tragedies.

MR. BRADY commented that he agrees with the concept; however,
there are laws on the books now that are either not enforceable
or [are flawed]. |[If this remains a |ocal-option issue, he said,
woul dn't it be reasonable for Wasilla to elect to close its bars
earlier as a result of its population wanted to address the
pr obl enf

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO explained that he didn't nmean to inply

that there were unnecessary statutes on the books. VWhat he is
saying is that there are currently laws dealing with DWs;

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- March 22, 2001



however, it cones down to nmanpower for enforcenent. In
addition, he said, [the state] can avoid the cost of prosecution
and the soci al costs like DW accidents by practicing
prevention. Regarding M. Brady's comments about |ocal control
he said he would agree to a certain extent; here there is a
situation in which Wasilla has a "carrot" out there for all of
the drinkers that want to continue drinking in Anchorage to get
on the highway and go to Wasilla. He said [Wasilla] is
attracting a crowd out there and inpacting the rest of the
comunity, and even inpacting Anchorage by having bar hours
until 5 a.m; they also are inpacting the troopers and other
public safety functions that the state provides. He said [the
state] is feeling the effects of their nore liberal bar hours
and have a responsibility to address that if it isn't addressed
| ocal ly.

Nunmber 2269

MR. BRADY responded that he has a hard time hearing that it is
an "inposition" on the state troopers, because that is their
function. Again, he returned to the question of whether any
licensed establishnents were <cited as a result of these
accidents; by existing laws, they could have been cited and

could lose their livelihood as a result of this. He said this
is not the way to address them \What is the problen? It is the
few irresponsible wusers who wll <continue to be a problem

regardl ess of what legislation is on the books.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI announced that public testinony was officially
cl osed.

Nunber 2400

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD stated that what is presently being done
isn't working, and if this [legislation] saves lives, he is in

agreenent . Wasilla is attracting drunk drivers on the road by
staying open longer. As to the local control issue, he said if
peopl e had not taken a stand nationally, there would still be

segregated schools in the South. He enphasized the need to pass
| aws for the greater good.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES followed up on sonme information he had
requested regarding closing tinmes of package stores.

CHAIR MURKOWEKI stated that nothing had been received, and that
she wasn't sure who had been asked for that information.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- March 22, 2001



MR FELI X stated that Doug Giffen had been asked.

TAPE 01-37, SIDE B

Nunber 2450

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO said there is a lot of legislation this
year, and there isn't one "silver bullet"; this needs to be a
conpr ehensi ve approach. He nentioned the statistics given to

the commttee, and specifically those given by the Wisilla
Police Department, which show that 45 percent of all the DW
arrests during the second quarter of 1997 and 1998 were of
people who didn't live in the area. And in addition to the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities' figures, a
hi gh percentage of those happened between 12 a.m and 4 a.m It
is no longer a guessing [gane] as to whether it m ght be causing
a problem The nunbers show that there is a problem and it is
[the |l egislature's] responsibility to take preventive neasures.

Number 2399

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO referred to the question about whether the
bars were issued citations. He offered that with three ABC
i nspectors for 1,400 licenses statew de, "we" are probably not
citing all of the bars that need to be cited. The whol e state
is going to benefit from this, he said, and Anchorage would
benefit from not having the traffic flow out to Wasilla until 5
a.m He said he is in support of the bill

Nunber 2351

CHAIR MURKOWBKI rem nded nenbers that the proposed CS had been
adopt ed previously, and the hours [contained in the proposed CS]
conform to those in the Anchorage area: 3 a.m closure on the
weekend, and 2:30 a.m during the week.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT cautioned nenbers on the data presented from
the Wasilla Police Departnent because it doesn't indicate when
the arrests occurred. And he suggested that when | ooking at the
time span from June to January [on the conmittee's handout]
referring to the 19 nen and 5 wonen arrested who were Anchorage
residents, these had occurred while coming home from a fishing
trip. He said it would be clearer if there were convincing
evidence that the arrests occurred between the hours of 3 and 5
a.m; however, that data isn't contained in the docunent.

Nunber 2284

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- March 22, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE HAYES stated that in looking at the data and in
hearing the testinony, this sounds |ike an "Anchorage-area-type
problem"” and to inpose a law across the state that addresses
one area's situation is problematic. He said the commttee saw
a sanple of the bar closure hours from a handout entitled
"Cities That Have Adopted O dinances Under AS 04.16.010 to
Restrict Hours of Sale,” and a lot of the big comunities did
change their bar hours. He recalled that M. Felix testified
that this would help communities because they don't have the
political wll to mnake these changes; however, Anchorage,
Fai r banks, Juneau, Ketchikan, None, and the North Slope have
made these changes. He said he doesn't feel that the argunent
is that strong and it is a local-control issue.

Nunber 2249

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES offered Anendnent 1, 22-LS0290\A.1, Ford
3/ 22/ 01, which reads [although the anendnent was drafted for the
original bill, it was being applied to the proposed CS]

Page 1, lines 6 - 7:

Del ete "al coholic beverage on premses |icensed
under this title between the hours of 2:00 [5:00] a.m
and 8:00 a.m each day."

Insert "alcoholic beverage on premses |icensed
under this title between the hours of

(1) 3:30 [5:00] a.m and 8:00 a.m on
Saturday or Sunday; and

(2) 2:00 a.m and 8:00 a.m on every other
day of the week [ EACH DAY]."

Page 1, lines 10 - 11:

Delete "alcoholic beverages on the [|icensed
prem ses between the hours of 2:00 [5:00] a.m and
8:00 a.m each day."

Insert "alcoholic beverages on the |icensed
prem ses between the hours of

(1) 3:30 [5:00] am and 8:00 a.m on
Saturday or Sunday; and

(2) 2:00 a.m and 8:00 a.m on every other
day of the week [ EACH DAY]."

Page 1, line 14:
Del ete "2: 00"

I nsert "(1) 3:30"
Page 2, line 1:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- March 22, 2001



Del ete "each day"

Insert "on Saturday or Sunday; and (2) 2:00 a.m
and 8:00 a.m on every other day of the week [EACH
DAY] "

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES expl ai ned that the bar hours changed in the
Fai rbanks North Star Borough because of a drunk driving incident
in which a person was seriously injured and subsequently
comm tted suicide. Because of this, he said, the bar closure
hours were changed to 2 a.m on weekdays and 3:30 a.m on
weekends. [ Fai rbanks] had a borough-wi de vote on this issue

and the citizens decided that this is what they wanted, and now
this legislation confornms to Anchorage bar hours. He remarked
that the whole state isn't tied to the Mnicipality of
Anchor age.

Nunmber 2186
REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO obj ected to Anendment 1.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER asked for clarification that the commttee
has previously adopted the Anchorage bar closure hours, and is
now di scussing the 10 a. m bar openi ng hour.

CHAI R MURKOWSKI responded that the existing statute has the bar
opening hours at 8 a.m, and Anchorage bar opening hours are 10
a. m

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES clarified that Anmendnment 1 addresses the
closing tines, not the opening tines.

Nunber 2121

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN stated that he would oppose Anmendnent 1;
however, if the sponsor would support the bill on the floor, he
said he would be nore "friendly to it." He said he would |ike
to keep the bill as witten.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT offered a conceptual anmendnment to Anendnent
1 to change the bar opening hours from8 a.m to 10 a. m

Number 2080

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES responded that he would be anenable to
t hat .

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- March 22, 2001



CHAI R MJURKOWABKI expl ained that the conceptual amendnent would
change lines 5, 13, and 23 to 10 a.m There being no objection
to the conceptual anendnent to Anendnment 1, it was adopted.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked for a roll call vote on Amendnent 1 as
anended. Representati ves Meyer, Kott, Rokeberg, Crawford, and
Hayes voted in favor of the anmendnent; Representatives Mirkowski
and Halcro voted in opposition. Therefore, Amendnent 1 as
anended was adopted by a vote of 5-2.

CHAI R MURKOABKI noted that will the adoption of Amendment 1, the
new hours would be from 10 a.m to 3:30 a.m on weekends and 10
a.m to 2 a.m during the week.

Nunmber 1966

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT clarified that the hours of operation in
Anchor age have been restricted from2:30 aam to 2 a.m

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER expl ai ned that he understood that the bars
in Anchorage close at 2 a.m during the week anyway, so he
didn't think it would be a problem

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN added that bar operation hours in Wsilla
now are 8 a.m to 5 a.m

Number 1830

CHAIR MJRKOWBKI commented that everyone has said that this
should be a local option, including the sponsor hinself. Even
given that, she explained, sonetines the right thing isn't done.
She said she had conme full circle on the bill, and is now

convi nced by the data.

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES stated that he is still interested in
getting the package store information, because it is relevant to
this discussion and to the discussion revolving around reducing
t he package store hours.

CHAI R MJURKOWSKI indicated that Representative Hayes nmakes a good
point and said the conmttee will ask for that information from
the ABC Board. She said hopefully M. Giffen would be able to
provide that to the House Finance Committee.

REPRESENTATI VE OGAN referred to "Title 10.50.010 (a)," where it

expl ai ns package stores hours. This is already in state |law, he
poi nted out and they aren't open until 5 a.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- March 22, 2001



Number 1702

REPRESENTATI VE HALCRO nmade a notion to nove the CS for HB 80
[ Version 22-LS0290\C, Ford, 3/8/01] as anmended from committee
Wi th individual recommendations and the attached fiscal note.
There being no objection, CSHB 80(L&C) noved from the House
Labor and Comerce Standing Committee.

HB 132- L1 QUOR LI CENSE APPLI CANT CHECK/ TRAI NI NG

Nunmber 1665

CHAI R MURKOWSKI announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 132, "An Act relating to the possession or
distribution of alcohol in a |ocal option area; requiring |iquor
| icense applicants to submt fingerprints for the purpose of
conducting a crimnal history background check, and relating to
the wuse of crimnal justice information by the Alcoholic
Beverage Control Board; providing for a review of alcohol server
education courses by the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board every
two years; and providing for an effective date.™

Number 1655

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, speaking as the chair of the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee, which had sponsored HB 132 by
request, offered a proposed commttee substitute (CS), version
22-1LS0380\J, Ford, 3/20/01. There being no objection, the
commttee adopted the proposed CS for HB 132 as the working
docunent .

Number 1610
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG explained that in the proposed CS, the

12 liters of wine [corresponds] to the 24 liters in the current
statute, and the 6 gallons or nore of mal t bever age

[corresponds] to the 12 gallons in current statute. So, he
said, the only change regarding the bootlegging provisions of
the bill consists of lowering the |limt of distilled spirits
from 12 liters to 6 liters. The proposed CS also deletes the

50-air-mle radius [stipulation] from Section 3 of the bill.
Number 1463

DEAN J. GUANELI , Chief Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Legal
Servi ces Section-Juneau, Crimnal Division, Departnment of Law,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- March 22, 2001



cane forward to testify. He said he had spoken wth
Representati ve Rokeberg's staff, the Alcoholic Beverage Control
(ABC) Board, and the Alaska State Troopers; all groups are in
support of the changes. He provided sone brief information
about why [the changes] nake sense.

MR. GUANELI explained that the original HB 132 was witten
before the state troopers received a large federal grant that
will provide nore investigators. Initially, there was an
attenpt to figure out sonme way to get additional information
about bootleggers, he said, and that was where the idea of
liquor stores keeping track of people within a 50-mle radius
ori gi nat ed. There is less need now for that provision, he
conmment ed.

MR. GUANELI reported being told by the ABC Board that package
stores are voluntarily cooperating by providing tips on

potenti al boot | eggers. "W don't want to destroy that
cooperation by inmposing what mght be an onerous burden on
them" he said,; t her ef or e, deleting that provision is

appropri ate.
Number 1481

CHAI R MURKOWSKI asked what would happen if the grant was not
conti nued.

MR. GUANELI expressed hope that it would be continued. "If not,
we may be back before the legislature for continued state
funding of that,"” he said. "W'Ill just have to see.”

Nunber 1460

MR. GUANELI, regarding the other provisions, said beer and w ne
are not the problemin rural Alaska; it's hard liquor. And so
keeping the limts as they exist under current |law really makes
the nobst sense. In looking at the recomendations from the

Crimnal Justice Assessnent Commssion (C-JAC), he said he
t hought the specific anobunts of the types of beverages reflected
a rough equivalence of a certain anount of alcohol. "I'n other
words, | sort of figured that ... the anount of alcohol in 12
liters was conparable to 24 liters of wne, and so cutting
everything in half nmade sone sense,” he remarked. However, in
calculated it this nmorning, he found that current law allows a
person to have a lot nore alcohol in hard liquor than in beer
and wine, "so cutting the hard liquor in half really does nore
to equalize all of those types of alcoholic beverages," he said.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- March 22, 2001



Number 1382

MR. GUANELI testified that the United States Postal Service
(USPS) also favors cutting the anount of hard I|iquor. Post al
officials have agreed to set up a system to x-ray mail as it
goes through the postal service; x-raying only those things that
are nore than one case would equate to x-raying just |arge
packages, which the USPS doesn't feel would be terribly
ef fective. The [USPS] felt that it was inportant to cut that
limt in half so smaller packages could be x-rayed, in an
[attenpt] to intercept [those breaking the |aw.

Number 1321

MR. GUANELI addressed the concern of people being able to have a
certain anount of liquor in the hone. If there are two adults
in a hone, he explained, each can possess this anmount of |iquor,
and even cutting the anmount of distilled spirits in half, it is
still a fair amount of liquor for a couple; if there are nore
adults in the house, it goes up from there, he said. Cutting
the anount in half is not going to burden anybody as a practical
matter, he remarked.

Number 1281

MVR. GUANELI concluded by saying that for all of the
[ af orementi oned] reasons, this is an appropriate change and
"we're" confortable in supporting the anmendnents and the bill

Nunber 1273

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES asked for «clarification that the state
woul d get five new troopers [paid for] with the federal grant.
Considering the size of the state, he asked if that would be
enough. He stated that while he thinks this bill has nerit, he
doesn't think [the state] puts enough troopers out on the
streets to [acconplish the goal here]. He asked for M.
Guanel i ' s opi ni on.

Number 1246

MR. GUANELI explained that the grant would provide for greater
enf or cenent . The troopers are planning to focus efforts on
certain areas where liquor 1is thought to be comng from
including parts of Anchorage, Bethel, and Kotzebue. "I think

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- March 22, 2001



it's certainly going to be a lot better than what we've had
before, and | think we just have to see where it goes," he said.

Nunber 1199

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked how the ABC Board feels about
doing a review of alcohol-server education courses every two
years rather than every three years. He stated that it seens a
little undermanned, and he asked if [the ABC Board] agreed with
this level of effort.

Nunber 1177

MR. GUANELI noted that M. Giffin was online to speak to that
questi on.

CHAI R MURKOWBKI asked M. Guaneli if he had any comrents on
either the fingerprinting or the |licensing sections of the bill,
because the comrittee didn't hear testinony on those during the
| ast heari ng.

MR. GUANELI spoke in support of those sections and said in order
to get national crimnal history records, the FBlI requires
fingerprints. Furthernore, there are sonme |icensees who live
out of state. Fingerprints aren't wanted from all enployees,
just the licensees, the corporate officers, and so forth, he
sai d. He stated that he thinks fingerprinting is inportant for
the board' s efforts, and he suggested that M. Giffin expand
upon that.

Nunber 1104

DOUG CGRIFFIN, Director, Al coholic Beverage Control Board (ABC
Board), Departnent of Revenue, via teleconference, said [the
departnent] thinks it can accommbdate the additional review of
al cohol server training;, it is an inportant partnership between
the board and private groups that provide the training. Over
the last couple of years, he said, there have been sone
i nprovenents, and the additional work would be manageable within

t he budget. Furthernore, providing oversight to the trainers
pays divi dends. M. Giffin informed the commttee that [the
depart nent ] is planning to keep better statistics about

violations and the type of training that the person receiving
t he violation had.

MR GRIFFIN turned to the issue of fingerprinting and thanked
Representative Rokeberg and the House Judiciary Standing

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- March 22, 2001



Commttee for including it in this bill. This is simlar to a
nmeasure that passed the House of Representatives |ast year, but
it didn't make it through the Senate. It is appropriate and
necessary to give |icensing agencies such as [the ABC Board] the
ability to access federal data banks. Public Law 92-544 [all ows

them to] review fingerprint cards of potential |icensees for
purposes of doing a nore conprehensive crimnal background
check. In doing so, it takes into account that today's society

is nore nobile. Furthernore, this would nainly focus on those
who reside within the United States, he explained, but outside
of Al aska. M. Giffin nentioned that there had been a couple

of situations in which people applying for a Iliquor I|icense
would not have shown up on the background check, since it
currently only involves violations in Al aska. If the board had

known of these people's crimnal backgrounds, the |icense would
have been deni ed; however, the board would not have known this
informati on based on the current process. Al though there is a
nom nal charge for a background check through the Departnent of
Public Safety, the additional cost would be passed on to the
| i censee.

MR GRIFFIN noted that the [ABC] Board uses its discretion in
determ ning soneone's crimnal history wth regard to giving
that person a |icense. Therefore, just because soneone has a
crimnal background doesn't necessarily disqualify him or her.
On the other hand, M. Giffin highlighted the inportance of the
board's having know edge of soneone who would be licensed to
serve alcoholic beverages in the state. M. Giffin said he
feels that the individual selling the alcohol is a big part of
t he al cohol abuse problens in Alaska. |If the board doesn't have
access to crimnal activity that has that occurred outside the
borders of Alaska, the board is hanmstrung in trying to do its
job. He pointed out that the ABC Board is made up of volunteers
who neet on their own tine and attenpt to serve the interests of
the public by making sure that those involved in the alcohol
beverage industry are of good character and respectful of the
law. M. Giffin infornmed the commttee that |ast year this was
wi dely supported by the Departnent of Public Safety, and he was
sure it remains supportive. This is one of those conmon-sense
preventive steps. Furthernore, this |egislation sends a nessage
that the service of alcoholic beverages is taken seriously and
that adequate steps wll be taken in order to review the
crimnal history that will be licensed in this endeavor. M.
Giffin felt that the nore hoops a person has to go through for
an al cohol license, the nore it inpresses upon people that this
a serious business in which care and respect should be taken.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- March 22, 2001



MR GRIFFIN reiterated that prevention saves noney. He
estimated that it costs tens of thousands of dollars for the
state to revoke a |license.

Nunmber 0487

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT inquired about the board' s process when
revi ewi ng and approvi ng an al cohol -server education course.

MR. GRIFFIN responded that [the ABC Board] reviews the materials
provided and look to see if the 16 specific itens are covered

He said there is a "canned" nationw de course that is custom zed
to address those things that are different about Al aska state
| aw. He added that the course needs to be of an appropriate
duration and require a test, and the people who are instructing
need to be know edgeabl e.

REPRESENTATI VE KOIT asked M. Giffin, when reviewng those
courses in the past, whether he had nmade suggestions or changes
to inprove them or whether [the courses] have been inline with
the established regul ati ons and conditi ons.

Number 0408

MR. GRIFFIN said the only major thing that [the ABC Board] talks
to them about is the custom zation, nmaking sure that the things
unique to Alaska state |law are covered. Mai nly, he said, the
canned course is good and covers how to deal with a custoner,
how to diplomatically cut soneone off, and so forth, which are
usual |y generic.

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked how many groups provide the education
trai ni ng course.

MR. CRIFFIN replied that at this tine there are basically three
maj or  groups: the Techniques of Alcohol Mnagenment (TAM
course, which is nost widely available and offered through the
Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers Association (CHARR); the
so-called "Bar Code," which is offered through the Al aska Hot el
and Modtel [Association] (AHVA) and the Anchorage Restaurant and
Beverage Association (ARBA); and "Tips Training," which is
typically provided in-house by a |large chain, for exanple.

Number 0280

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT asked how long it takes M. Giffin to
revi ew one of these courses.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- March 22, 2001



MR GRIFFIN said if it is a new course, |like Bar Code, it takes
three days to go through, and there is discussion back and
forth; then for renewal, it would take one to two days per
course.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Giffin to tell the commttee
how a limted liability [conpany] (LLC) can be fingerprinted.

MR. GRIFFIN explained that regulating LLCs is a challenge. He
said [the ABC Board] tries to focus on the conponents of the
LLC, because an LLC can consist of a cluster of corporations and
there is a lot of dialogue back and forth trying to find out who
the key players are within the LLC. Once determ ned, the board
wants to nake sure its "net" is cast w de enough to protect the
public interest. Qoviously, there can be LLCs that have
hundreds of people, so sonme detective work has to be done to
find out who really has the authority. Sonetinmes six or eight
peopl e would be fingerprinted, he remarked, if they were key to
t he al cohol -service aspect of the bill

TAPE 01-38, SIDE A
Number 0038

MR NORRIS said alcohol is the biggest problem out in Bush
Al aska. One of his troopers working on the Kotzebue [River]
told him that when a "streanmt of alcohol gets into the
comunity, it turns into a river of famly assault, suicides,
DWs, notor vehicle accidents, and homcides. He is in favor of
the bill as it is.

MR NORRIS referred to the five [new state] troopers that wl
be paid for fromthe federal grant. He said it is an attenpt to
be proactive because the current levels just allow [the state]
to react to crine.

Nunber 0174

BLAIR  McCUNE, Deputy Director, Publ i c Def ender Agency,
Departnent of Adm nistration, via teleconference, said he thinks
it is a good idea and he agreed with M. CGuaneli when he said
the bootlegging problens are nostly with hard liquor, rather
than wine or beer. He stated that he redid the fiscal note and
made a solid estimate of the types and amounts of cases that
have to be covered, taking into account the $1.4 mllion grant
that the Departnment of Law and the Departnent of Public Safety
will be receiving.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- March 22, 2001



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. MCune if he could ask for
part of that grant to help out. He al so asked how bootl eggers
woul d qualify for a public defender.

MR. MCUNE responded that he hadn't asked M. CGuaneli directly
about public defender services [paid for] through the federa
appropri ation. In his past experience with federal I|aw and
federal grants, they restrict recipients to |law enforcenent and
prosecutors, nore than public defenders; he said he would ask
but [public defenders] don't normally get "cut in" on federa
fundi ng because of the invol venent of federal |aws.

Number 0403

MR. MCUNE, addressing the question of bootleggers affording a
private attorney, said sone can, but the majority can't. In his
experience as a public defender in Bethel, the liquor isn't
brought in with a container, it is brought in with "knapsacks

and boxes,"” and the people bringing it in don't have a lot of
noney. He said he didn't know of any "bootlegging kingpins.”
Certainly, the msery that it causes is spread around; the
peopl e who do the bootlegging are not wealthy people and don't
have the neans to hire an attorney.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he believes that it is entirely
unfair for this legislation to be "saddled" with the results of
a $1.4 mllion grant to the Departnent of Public Safety; the

sane conditions apply to the Departnent of Corrections. He
suggested that M. MCune "plead" with the adm nistration to get
sone funding because the fiscal notes wll "kill" the bill. | f

the legal fees can't be received in-kind from a bootlegger, it
is going to make it tough to pass this |egislation, he remarked.

Nunmber 0598

REPRESENTATI VE HAYES referred to Section 3, and asked what
criteria woul d exclude soneone fromgetting a liquor license.

REPRESENTATI VE RCOKEBERG responded that [the ABC Board] is
| ooking for a crimnal charge in another state.

MR CRIFFIN replied that [the board] is |ooking at alcohol-
rel ated things; someone who has a string of DWs wouldn't be a
good candidate to have a liquor license, or soneone who has been
convicted of assault within the last five years, or sonmeone who
has been convicted on a weapons charge, and so forth. [Crinmes

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- March 22, 2001



that occurred] wthin the past ten years would be of particular
i nportance. He gave an exanple of a man who was applying for a
| iquor license in Al aska, and only because he was involved as an
i nf or mant for the Anchorage Police Departnent did the
information surface: he had been convicted of kidnapping,
selling alcohol without a license, and one other alcohol-rel ated
charge in California within the last five years. He said this
was found out because [the Anchorage Police Departnment] did a
background check before enploying him If he had gone through
the normal Al aska-only background check, this wouldn't have been
known.

Number 0801

MR. CRIFFIN, responding to a question about whether soneone who
had served tine for a crine and was rehabilitated would be

denied a liquor license, stated that these cases are handled
case-by-case; it is one of the nore inportant things that the
ABC Board does. It is done in executive session with the

person, he said, unless the person doesn't have problem talking
about his or her crimnal background in a public session. [ The
ABC Board] takes into account a lot of factors, but if the
charge is serious enough, there is a good chance that the board
would deny a liquor license for a person even after being
convicted and serving his or her tine.

MR CGRIFFIN explained that a liquor license is viewed as a
privilege, and the board has to take into account the ability of
soneone to be responsible. [ The ABC Board] has to keep the
public's safety in mnd. He equated it to a person who gets

pi cked up for his or her third or fourth DW and gets his or her
| icense revoked; he said even after the time has been served,
that person still is not going to be issued a license for 10 to
20 years. [ Package-store owners] are dispensers of a |egal
drug, and [the board] wants to take the greatest care to ensure
that those owners have the highest character and regard for the
| aw.

Number 0989

REPRESENTATI VE KOTT made a notion to nove the CS for HB 132[22-
LS0380\J, Ford, 3/20/01] out of <conmttee wth individua
recommendations and attached fiscal notes. There being no
objection, CSHB 132(L&) was noved from the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmittee.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- March 22, 2001



ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:15 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 26- March 22, 2001



